MINUTES of a meeting of the COALVILLE SPECIAL EXPENSES WORKING PARTY held in the Board Room, Council Offices, Coalville on TUESDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2017

Present: Councillor J Geary (Chairman)

Councillors R Adams, N Clarke, J Cotterill, D Everitt, J Legrys, P Purver, M Specht and M B Wyatt

Officers: Mr J Knight, Mrs W May, Ms K Greenbank, Mrs C Ridgway and Mrs R Wallace

10. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.

11. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor M B Wyatt declared a non pecuniary interest in any reference to Coalville Town Centre as a business owner.

Councillor J Geary declared a non pecuniary interest in item 5 – Capital Projects Update as a regular supporter of Coalville Town Football Club and a founder member of Mantle Lane Arts.

Councillor J Legrys declared a non pecuniary interest in reference to Hermitage FM due to his voluntary involvement with the organisation.

12. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

Consideration was given to the minutes held on 11 July 2017.

The Chairman referred to the discussion had on mobile vehicle activated signage where it was requested that a letter be sent to the Leader of Leicestershire County Council regarding the disappointing level of service for replacing damaged signs. The Leisure Services Team Manager confirmed that the letter had not yet been sent but agreed to do so as soon as possible.

It was moved by Councillor R Adams, seconded by Councillor J Legrys and

RESOLVED THAT:

The minutes of the meeting held on 11 July 2017 be approved and signed by the Chairman.

13. 2017/18 EVENTS UPDATE

The Cultural Services Team Manager presented the report and informed Members that all events had cost less to run this year, therefore the overall budget was underspent. She advised that the Proms and Picnic in the Park event had been shortlisted for a Leicestershire Tourism and Hospitality Award and an update would be sent to Members in due course. Members thanked officers for the work undertaken on a fantastic event.

Coalville by the Sea

The event was very successful with an estimated 1000 people in attendance. Due to the popularity of the event and feedback received, the feasibility of extending the event was being considered for future years. The relocation back to Marlborough Square was also being considered.

Councillor M Specht thanked officers for their work on the event and also thanked the sponsor for the donation of the sand. Councillor J Legrys concurred.

Christmas in Coalville

Planning was well underway and the Council was leading on all key elements, following agreement to this arrangement with the Coalville Town Team. It was confirmed that there would be free parking on the five Saturdays in December. It was reported that the food, drink and craft element would be different this year with more emphasis on placing stalls around the Christmas tree area in the precinct, along with music, entertainment and competitions.

Councillor M B Wyatt asked if arrangements had been made to utilise Memorial Square as he felt it had been neglected in previous years. He added that the Red House had offered the use of the car park and he felt it would be good to have some atmosphere at that part of the town. The Cultural Services Team Manager reported that the area had been considered but they had been conscious of spreading the event too far with regards to the management of the event. She felt that the market and its car park was a good main attraction area that was safe. Councillor M B Wyatt expressed his frustration at the response as he believed that Memorial Square was an important part of town and should be utilised. The Cultural Service Team Manager agreed to look into options available.

Councillor M Specht felt that it would be a good area to use especially with the cooperation of the Red House. He suggested that a band such as the Salvation Army or a choir could perform in the area. The Cultural Services Team Manager confirmed that a brass band were performing in the town centre and agreed to look into the possibility of locating them to Memorial Square.

Christmas Lights

The lights were scheduled for installation which included the additional items approved by Cabinet on 19 September.

Coalville Commemorates

Members met on site at Memorial Square to discuss ideas for a commemorative artwork on 13 September, the outcome of which was the following three options:

Option 1 – an interpretive mosaic

Option 2 – commemorative benches

Option 3 – a cross made from gun metal located in the 'Remembrance Garden'

Councillor J Legrys moved option 3 and it was seconded by Councillor R Adams.

The Chairman felt that it was important to have something in place that would last another 100 years and after seeing a gun metal cross, he believed it would be very fitting. It would also include engravings. Councillor D Everitt commented that it was the simplicity of it that was appealing and felt it was appropriate in all ways. Councillor J Legrys commented that a large quantity of gun metal was being unearthed in Belgium and it would be nice to have that specific material if possible. The Chairman added that the cost would be more than the £2000 originally budgeted for the project but officers would investigate further and provide Members with some costings.

Councillor M B Wyatt felt strongly that the proposal was a waste of money considering the other things that required funding. He believed that something more meaningful could be installed that did not cost such a large amount of money.

It was moved by Councillor M Specht, seconded by Councillor J Legrys and

RESOLVED THAT:

- a) The progress update on 2017/18 events be noted.
- b) The initial proposals for 2018/19 events be noted
- c) Officers investigate further into the procurement of a gun metal cross to be located in the Remembrance Garden at Memorial Square and report the progress at the next meeting.

14. CAPITAL PROJECTS UPDATE

The Leisure Services Team Manager presented the report to Members, providing an update on the ongoing projects.

Owen Street Recreation Ground

Following concerns regarding the sustainability of the floodlights, officers had met with Property Services to identify a number of options and associated costs. These would be circulated to Members in due course. Any funding streams available were also being investigated.

The official opening of the changing pavilion would be taking place on 8 November. All Coalville Special Expenses Working Party Members had been formally invited and the format of the event was detailed within the report.

Hermitage FM had asked to place a radio transmitter at Owen Street Recreation Ground and work was currently underway to progress this with the support from officers and Members.

Thringstone Minors Social Centre Training Pitch

Planning approval had been given for both the fencing and footpath diversion, in addition the Board had three new trustees and a new Chair. It was hoped that the progression of the training pitch would be discussed at the next meeting of trustees in October/November.

Coalville Forest Adventure Park

In accordance with Members request at the last meeting to fund proposed improvements to the park, officers were finalising a bid for funding for the submission deadline of 30 October. The application would be considered on 27 November.

Mobile Vehicle Activated Signs

The Community Focus Officer advised that Leicestershire County Council had inspected and approved the proposed columns. As per the Council's procurement rules, quotes from three companies had been obtained and the details were circulated to Members. After further discussions Members preference was option three – Messagemaker Displays. The Community Focus Officer also advised that Leicestershire County Council had agreed to collect data from Warren Hills Road over the coming weeks and would be meeting with officers in November to discuss the options available.

Melrose Road Recreation Ground

The seating would be installed at the end of September and the planting of the shrubbery would take place in February. Councillor D Everitt referred to a decision made at a previous meeting to site one of the benches at the play hub and asked if this had been done. Members were still happy with the previous agreement and therefore The Leisure Services Team Manager agreed to make the arrangements.

Melrose Road Play Hub

Although the landowner of the wooded area agreed in principle to the installation of the footpath in July, formal written approval had not yet been received despite officers numerous attempts. The Leisure Services Team Manager assured Members that officers would continue to pursue this.

Coalville Park

Concerns had been received regarding the quality of the play equipment and Members noted previous investments. Councillor M B Wyatt commented that the equipment was poor.

The toilets were currently being vandalised on a regular basis. Property Services were looking at options available to reduce anti-social behaviour and the ongoing costs associated with the damage caused. All options would be brought back to the group for consideration.

Discussions had been had with Fields in Trust regarding placing Coalville Park in trust in perpetuity in order to protect it as an open space. Currently, Fields in Trust had an initiative which encouraged landowners to dedicate a recreational space as a 'Centenary Field' to commemorate the end of World War 1 and to remember those that lost their lives. The peace garden might meet the criteria for this and could be another way to celebrate the centenary in 2018. Councillor M B Wyatt felt that it was difficult to support the proposal when in his opinion the cemetery opposite, in which war veterans had been laid to rest, could be developed rather than Coalville Park. He asked if it was possible to have two designated areas so close together. The Chairman responded that it would be possible to have both spaces designated, if the criteria was met. Councillor R Adams questioned if a cemetery could be designated as the definition referred to 'the protection of places for recreation, sporting activities and open space'. Discussions then ensued regarding whether a cemetery was a place for recreation. The Head of Economic Development agreed to look into options for the cemetery with regards to Fields in Trust and to report back to the next meeting.

Desire had been expressed to obtain the Green Flag Award for Coalville Park and if Members were supportive, officers would consider the implications of assessment and any improvements that may be required to obtain the accreditation. As Ward Member, Councillor J Legrys was very supportive. He understood it would involve a lot of work and investment but would like officers to investigate further. Members agreed. In response to a question from Councillor N Clarke, the Head of Economic Development confirmed that there would be a cost involved to apply for the accreditation and there would need to be some investment to improve the standard of the park.

Lillehammer Drive

The Section 106 Deed of Variation had finally been signed by both the District Council and Barratt's, with the understanding that this meant that the MUGA would have to be removed within six weeks and then the commuted sum for the maintenance of open space would be received. Unfortunately it had transpired that not all planning conditions had been fulfilled and officers were still waiting for a revised landscaping scheme to replace the MUGA. Officers had attempted to resolve the matter but Barratt's had been unresponsive. Members were assured that Legal Services were continuing attempts to resolve the matter.

Councillor J Legrys commented that officers had worked tirelessly on the matter and he was aware that the fault lied with the developer. He congratulated officers on their persistence.

It was moved by Councillor N Clarke, seconded by Councillor R Adams and

RESOLVED THAT:

- a) The progress update on 2017/18 Capital Projects be noted.
- b) The mobile vehicle activated signs be purchased from Messagemaker Displays.

15. COALVILLE SPECIAL EXPENSES 2017/18 P5 POSITION

The Leisure Services Team Manager presented the report to Members, highlighting the current forecasted underspend with a contribution to balances of £16,450.

It was moved by Councillor M Specht, seconded Councillor J Legrys and

RESOLVED THAT:

The 2017/18 period 5 position be noted.

16. LONDON ROAD CEMETERY

Councillor M B Wyatt asked Members to consider investing funds to improve the condition of London Road Cemetery. He explained that the cemetery was full of history with World War 1 veterans laid to rest there along with people from Ibstock Colliery. He felt there was a lot to be learnt but the condition of the site was off putting as it was very overgrown and untidy. He believed that it was a real waste of space, and as it costs money to be opened and closed each day, then some investment was needed. Councillor M B Wyatt added that he was aware of grants that were available to make improvements and asked officers to investigate. He asked that if Members were in support of this, then it be looked at relatively soon as the main wall was crumbling.

The Chairman expressed his disappointment that areas such as this were being lost and agreed that he would like to see a report on the options available to them to make improvements.

Councillor M Specht agreed that cemeteries were being neglected across the country and he felt it was a real shame.

Councillor J Legrys felt that it was a very good place to visit and reflect. He commented that he had been approached by local residents regarding anti-social behaviour in the cemetery, and agreed that some investment was needed.

It was moved by Councillor R Adams, seconded by Councillor J Legrys and

RESOLVED THAT:

A report outlining issues and options available for improving London Road Cemetery be presented at a future meeting.

The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm

The Chairman closed the meeting at 7.50 pm